
 

March 23, 2023 ~ 2:00 PM  Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
Oroville City Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

  March 23, 2023 
  REGULAR MEETING 

OPEN SESSION 2:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 
 

 
REQUESTS TO ADDRESS BOARD 

If you would like to address the Board at this meeting, you are requested to complete the blue 
speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the Board Clerk, who is 
seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Board in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal information on the form 
is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior to the conclusion of the 
staff presentation for that item. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Board is prohibited 
from taking action except for a brief response from the Board or staff to statements or questions relating 
to a non-agenda item. 
 

Attend In Person or listen in by one of the methods listed below: 

 Zoom Link: https://zoom.us/j/91028842432?pwd=TVh4SlFHbUhyTG9oeXFnejFWUjEwZz09 

 By Phone – 1-669-900-6833 Passcode: 17351735 

 Zoom Application: Meeting ID: 91028842432 Passcode: 17351735 

 Email comments accepted until 12pm to publiccomment@cityoforoville.org  
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  

2. Roll Call 
 Board Members: Bill Connelly, Eric Smith, William Bynum, Kyle Daley, Bruce Wristen 

 Staff Management Team: Butte County – Kamie Loeser, Christina Buck, TWSD – Chris 

Heindell, Oroville – Matt Thompson, Jackie Glover 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. *The Board may Approve the Minutes of the February 23, 2023 Board Meeting.  

Action: Approval of the meeting minutes. 

4. *Consideration of Wyandotte Creek GSA Five Year Revenue Projections and Fee Options 
The Board will consider approval of updated GSA Five-Year Revenue Projections needed to 
evaluate potential fee options for the WDC GSA. (Report: Ludhorff & Scalmanini Consulting 
Engineers) 
 

Recommendation: Approval of the recommended Revenue Projections and direction regarding 

fee options to be reviewed as part of the long-term funding project. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/91028842432?pwd=TVh4SlFHbUhyTG9oeXFnejFWUjEwZz09
mailto:publiccomment@cityoforoville.org


 

March 23, 2023 ~ 2:00 PM  Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

 

REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

5. Verbal Management Committee Updates (staff) 

PUBLIC COMMENT- NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

This is the time for the public to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda. The WC GSA 

Board is prohibited by State law from taking action on any item presented if it is not listed on the agenda.  

Comments will be limited to three minutes per person. 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

The meeting will be adjourned. A regular meeting of the Wyandotte Creek GSA Board will be scheduled 

on April 27, 2023 at 2:00 pm. 

Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the Board Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 

 

Recordings - All meetings are audio recorded. 
 
*Materials attached  



 

February 23, 2023 ~ 2:00 PM Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
Oroville City Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

  February 23, 2023 
  MINUTES 

 
 

This agenda was posted on Thursday, February 16, 2023. This meeting was recorded and may be 
viewed at cityoforoville.org.  
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Connelly opened the meeting at 2pm 

1. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Chairperson Connelly 

2. Roll Call 
PRESENT: Board Members: Bill Connelly, Janet Goodson, William Bynum, Kyle Daley, Scott 

Koach 

 Staff Management Team: Butte County – Kamie Loeser, Christina Buck, TWSD – Chris 

Heindell, Oroville – Matt Thompson, Jackie Glover, Josh Freitas 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Election of Chair and Vice Chair – Motion by Board Member Bynum and seconded by Board 
Member Goodson to select Bill Connelly as Chair. Motion by Board Member Daley and 
seconded by Board Member Goodson to select Board Member Bynum as Vice Chair. Motions 
passed unanimously.  

4. The Board may Approve the Minutes of the November 10, 2022 Board Meeting.  

Motion by Vice Chairperson Bynum and seconded by Board Member Goodson to approve the 
minutes of November 10, 2022. Motion passed unanimously. 

5. Review of the Current Governance, Structure, and Funding for the Wyandotte Creek GSA. 
The Management Committee reviewed the current governance, structure, responsibilities, and 
funding of the Wyandotte Creek GSA. (Report: Kamie Loeser) 
 

6. Consideration of Management Options and Revenue Needs for the Future Administration 
of the Wyandotte Creek GSA. The Management Committee and funding consultant initiated 
discussions regarding the future management, role, funding, and revenue needs of the Wyandotte 
Creek GSA. (Report: Ludhorff & Scalmanini Consulting Engineers) 
 

Board Member Goodson left the meeting at 3:19pm.  

 

Motion by Vice Chairperson Bynum and second by Board Member Daley to adopt the tentative 

budget. Motion passed with Board Member Goodson Absent.  

 



 

February 23, 2023 ~ 2:00 PM Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

7. Consideration of 2023 Wyandotte Creek GSA Board and Advisory Committee Calendar. 
The Board considered for approval a proposed Wyandotte Creek GSA Board and Wyandotte 
Creek GSA Advisory Committee (WAC) calendar for 2023. (Report: Kamie Loeser) 
 

Motion by Board Member Daley and seconded by Vice Chairperson Bynum to approve the 

meeting calendar. Motion passed with Board Member Goodson absent.  

REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

8. Verbal Management Committee Updates - None 

PUBLIC COMMENT- NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

There were 0 public speakers at this meeting. 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

Chairperson Connelly adjourned the meeting at 3:26pm.  

 

 

___________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Chairperson Bill Connelly     Manager Kamie Loeser 



 Wyandotte Creek 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

Agenda Transmittal 

Agenda Item: 4 

Subject: Consideration of Wyandotte Creek GSA Five Year Revenue Projections and Fee Options 

Contact: Kamie Loeser Phone: 552-3595 Meeting Date: 3/23/2023 Regular Agenda 

Department Summary:  The Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability Agency (WDC GSA) was established to develop 
the WDC Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP), which was prepared and submitted to DWR in January 2022 in 
accordance with the GSP submittal deadline.  The WDC GSA worked collaboratively with stakeholders to develop the GSP 
and is now focused on GSP implementation and maintaining SGMA compliance while maintaining local control over its 
groundwater resources. 
 
Achieving long term SGMA compliance while implementing actions to achieve groundwater sustainability will require 
reliable long term funding sources to support GSA operations, achieve SGMA compliance requirements, and implement 
priority projects and programs that meet GSP goals and objectives.  The WDC GSA Board reviewed draft revenue 
requirements over the 2024-2028 period at the February Board meeting to sustain the GSA financially for use in 
evaluating fee options.  Attached are the updated revenue projections to be used for the fee options analyses which will 
include two revenue projection scenarios.  Scenario 1 assumes no SGMA implementation grant funding is awarded to the 
WDC GSA and scenario 2 assumes that SGMA implementation grant funding is approved and offsets some of the GSA’s 
long term SGMA compliance costs over the five-year period.  Including both revenue projections in the fee option 
evaluation work will provide the Board with a range of options when considering the adoption of future fees as part of 
the current long term funding project. 
 
The fee options to be evaluated will include the following: (1) cost per acre; (2) irrigated vs. non-irrigated; and (3) land 
use hybrid model.  The fee options evaluation will consider the cost of option implementation so that each option can be 
compared in terms of the overall rate impact on those subject to the SGMA compliance fee.  The findings of the fee 
options evaluation will be shared with the Board through a Technical Memorandum which will be prepared by the 
project consultant with recommendations provided at the April 2023 WDC GSA Board meeting.  
 
Public outreach materials are being developed and will be placed on the WDC GSA website in March.  As the long-term 
fee project evolves additional outreach will be conducted to engage stakeholders and answer questions as needed.  
Initially Frequently Asked Questions and Answers and Funding Fact Sheet will be available as part of the project outreach 
plan.  And a public workshop is planned for early April.  Additional information will be provided as needed for a 
transparent and informative process. 
 
 
Attached:  2024-2028 Revenue Projections (no DWR grant funding) 
                    2024-2028 Revenue Projections (with DWR grant funding) 
                     Wyandotte Creek Funding Fact Sheet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Staff Recommendation: Approve updated Wyandotte Creek GSA (WDC GSA) Five-Year Revenue Projections for use in 
evaluating long-term fee options for the WDC GSA and to keep the project on schedule. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



5-Year GSP Implementation Inflation Adjustment 0% 3% 3% 5% 5%
Proposed Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Cost Category-GSA Admin. FY23-24 FY24-25 FY25-26 FY26-27 FY27-28
Professional Services - Admin. 
  Auditor $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
  Financial Services $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
  Legal Services $10,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
  Program Manager (w/County management) $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000
  Professional Services - Admin. Sub-total $67,500 $62,500 $62,500 $62,500 $62,500
Office Expense
  Bank Fees $250 $250 $250 $250 $250
  Insurance $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000
  Outreach (education and outreach) $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
  Website $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
  Supplies $1,000 $500 $500 $500 $500
  Office Expense Sub-total $7,250 $6,750 $6,750 $6,750 $6,750
Professional Services - GSP Implementation $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Legal Defense Reserve (build $150,000/yr. balance) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
County Tax Roll Fee Support $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000
Contingency (10%) $8,875 $8,325 $8,325 $8,325 $8,325
GSA Admin. Sub-total $97,625 $91,575 $91,575 $91,575 $91,575
5-Year GSP Implementation Inflation Adjustment 0% 3% 3% 5% 5%
Cost Category-SGMA Compliance FY23-24 FY24-25 FY25-26 FY26-27 FY27-28
Annual Reporting (assumes DWR monitoring continues) $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000
Five Year GSP Update w/Modeling Calibrations $43,750 $43,750 $43,750 $43,750 $35,000
Surface-GW Interaction Modeling $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500
GSA Coordination & Outreach (w/in and between GSAs) $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Data Management System Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Long Term Financial Planning/Fees $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Grant Procurement $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Contingency (8%) $9,300 $9,300 $9,300 $9,300 $8,600
SGMA Compliance Sub-Total $125,550 $125,550 $125,550 $125,550 $116,100
TOTAL WDCGSA Administration (w/inflation adjustment) $97,625 $100,554 $106,587 $118,312 $137,241
TOTAL WDCGSA SGMA Compliance (w/inflation adjustment) $125,550 $129,317 $137,075 $152,154 $176,498
TOTALWDCGSA Operational Budget $223,175 $229,870 $243,662 $270,465 $313,740

Wyandotte Creek GSA - Long Term Funding Strategy
Five-Year GSA Operational Budget - GSP Implementation and SGMA Compliance Costs



5-Year GSP Implementation Inflation Adjustment 0% 3% 3% 5% 5%
Proposed Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Cost Category-GSA Admin. FY23-24 FY24-25 FY25-26 FY26-27 FY27-28
Professional Services - Admin. 
  Auditor $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
  Financial Services $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
  Legal Services $10,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
  Program Manager (w/County management) $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000
  Professional Services - Admin. Sub-total $67,500 $62,500 $62,500 $62,500 $62,500
Office Expense
  Bank Fees $250 $250 $250 $250 $250
  Insurance $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000
  Outreach (education and outreach) $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
  Website $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
  Supplies $1,000 $500 $500 $500 $500
  Office Expense Sub-total $7,250 $6,750 $6,750 $6,750 $6,750
Professional Services - GSP Implementation $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Legal Defense Reserve (no balance recommended) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
County Tax Roll Fee Support $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000
Contingency (10%) $8,875 $8,325 $8,325 $8,325 $8,325
GSA Admin. Sub-total $97,625 $91,575 $91,575 $91,575 $91,575
5-Year GSP Implementation Inflation Adjustment 0% 3% 3% 5% 5%
Cost Category-SGMA Compliance FY23-24 FY24-25 FY25-26 FY26-27 FY27-28
Annual Reporting (with continued DWR Monitoring) $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000
Five Year GSP Update w/Modeling Calibrations $0 $0 $0 $43,750 $35,000
Surface-GW Interaction Modeling $0 $0 $0 $7,500 $7,500
GSA Coordination & Outreach (w/in and between GSAs) $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Data Management System Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000
Long Term Financial Planning/Fees $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000
Grant Procurement $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Contingency (8%) $1,600 $1,600 $1,600 $10,100 $9,400
SGMA Compliance Sub-Total $21,600 $21,600 $21,600 $136,350 $126,900
TOTAL WDCGSA Administration (w/inflation adjustment) $97,625 $100,554 $106,587 $118,312 $137,241
TOTAL WDCGSA SGMA Compliance (w/inflation adjustment) $21,600 $22,248 $23,583 $26,177 $30,365
TOTALWDCGSA Operational Budget $119,225 $122,802 $130,170 $144,489 $167,607

Wyandotte Creek GSA - Long Term Funding Strategy
Five-Year GSA Operational Budget - GSP Implementation and SGMA Compliance Costs (With DWR SGMA GSA Implementation Grant Funds Approved)



Who is the Wyandotte Creek Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency?
The Wyandotte Creek Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (WC GSA) is the Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (GSA) responsible for developing and 
implementing the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
for the Wyandotte Creek Subbasin. The WC GSA works 
cooperatively with the other GSAs in Butte County to 
cost-effectively achieve groundwater sustainability goals 
and objectives in its adopted GSP.

GSP Implementation Funding 
for Years 2024-2028
Now that the Wyandotte Creek Subbasin GSP has 
been submitted to the California Department of 
Water Resources (DWR), the WC GSA is working to 
implement the GSP in a cost-effective manner. To fund 
GSP implementation and Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act (SGMA) compliance activities, revenue 
requirements have been developed by the GSA, 
which are proposed to be funded through long-term 
fees that will support the work to achieve groundwater 
sustainability. GSAs must implement groundwater 
sustainability monitoring and management actions to 
bring the entire Subbasin into compliance with SGMA 
requirements by 2042. Working together as a Subbasin 
and throughout the County will help keep future fees as 
low as possible.

What Fee Options are Being 
Considered by the GSAs for Covering GSP 
Implementation Costs?
The WC GSA is considering Proposition 218 or 26 fee 
methodologies to cover long-term GSP implementation 
and SGMA compliance costs.The Proposition 218 fee 
process is considered to be the most transparent and 
equitable method for establishing fees to cover GSP 
implementation costs, based on broad application of 
this approach by many other GSAs across California. 
The WC GSA will consider using the Proposition 26 fee 
approach if feasible. Doing nothing on SGMA compliance 
would lead to State intervention in the Wyandotte Creek 
Subbasin groundwater management activities. The WC 
GSA has determined that local cost sharing arrangements 
would not be adequate to cover GSP implementation and 
SGMA compliance costs and concluded that the cost for 
State Water Resources Control Board intervention would 
be higher and unacceptable compared to local control 
of watershed resources. The WC GSA will follow any 
legal and regulatory requirements for the selected fee 
methodology including following the process that allows 
for a landowner protest vote as part of the approval 
process, as applicable.

How were GSP Implementation Costs 
Developed for the Proposed Fees?
The Wyandotte Creek GSA is working collaboratively 
to develop the most efficient manner to implement the 
GSP and comply with SGMA regulations by 2042. The 
WC GSA is responsible for their GSA administration 
and SGMA compliance costs with updated revenue 
requirements to implement its GSP while keeping 
future fees as low as possible. The proposed GSP 
implementation and SGMA compliance costs reflect the 
minimum revenue requirements to comply with SGMA 
and meet Wyandotte Creek Subbasin sustainability 
goals and objectives based on known information and 
data about the Wyandotte Creek Subbasin and GSA 
operational costs.

What Happens if We Fail?
Maintaining local control over our groundwater resources 
is a top priority for the WC GSA. Implementing the GSP 
and complying with SGMA will keep the State from 

March 2023

OrovilleOroville

Wyandotte 
Creek 

Subbasin

ChicoChico

Butte CountyButte County

Wyandotte Creek Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan
Long-Term Funding for GSP Implementation

WC GSA Member Agencies 
Butte County 

City of Oroville  
Thermalito Water & Sewer District



Contact: 
wyandottegsa@gmail.com 

Website: 
www.wyandottecreekgsa.org

intervening in the local groundwater management and decision-making 
processes and keep our fees as low as possible. If State intervention were 
to occur due to SGMA non-compliance landowners would be subject to 
State fees approved by the State Water Resources Control Board.
The local GSAs are working hard to avoid State intervention and 
higher GSP implementation costs.

Fee Methodologies
The WC GSA Board is considering establishing long-term fees in 
accordance with Water Code Section 10730 to cover the administrative and 
operational costs of GSP implementation and SGMA compliance. Under 
Proposition 218 valid protests received in a timely manner by the WC 
GSA from landowners for which the fee would be levied would be counted 
before adopting the proposed fee. If a majority protest is not received, the 
WC GSA may adopt the fee. A majority protest would prevent imposition 
of the fee. State intervention could occur if local GSAs are unable to fund 
implementation of a plan that meets the state requirements.
The fees will fund GSA administration and SGMA compliance activities 
related to GSP implementation. Local and regional projects were 
included in the GSP to enhance groundwater sustainability and will be 
supported through other funding sources on an as-needed basis aimed 
at achieving State mandated and locally defined sustainability. Funding 
this effort is critical for maintaining local control over the implementation 
of sustainable groundwater management actions in the Wyandotte Creek 
Subbasin. The WC GSA is committed to retaining local control over SGMA 
implementation, utilizing landowner dollars efficiently and beneficially.
Fees would be collected with the Butte County tax roll from all parcel 
owners subject to the fee within the Wyandotte Creek Subbasin GSA 
boundaries, excluding federal/state/tribal lands. The fees would be based 
on total revenue requirements and acreage in the GSA service area. All 
parcels subject to the fee would receive a Proposition 218 notice (if that 
is the preferred fee method selected) before the WC GSA Board would 
consider approving the proposed fees.
You can use the following WC GSA link (www.wyandottecreekgsa.org) 
to learn more about Wyandotte Creek Subbasin GSP implementation 
activities and follow updates on establishing a long-term funding strategy to 
cover the costs of WC GSA administration and SGMA compliance activities. 
We also have frequently asked questions available to address your 
questions or concerns. We welcome your comments and thoughts on how 
we can work together to maintain local control over our water resources.

Prepare/Approve  
Five-Year GSP Updates

Maintain a Functioning GSA 
(Budget and Staffing)

Conduct Annual GW 
Monitoring and Reporting

Ongoing GSA  
Coordination/Outreach

SGMA 
Compliance

2024-2028 Wyandotte Creek Subbasin GSP Implementation 
Summary of State SGMA Requirements

The WC GSA will be responsible for covering its GSA administration costs and 
GSP implementation SGMA compliance costs identified in the adopted GSP. The 
WC GSA will serve as the fiscal agent on behalf of parcels subject to fee in the 
WC GSA service area to manage the GSP implementation budget and report on 
the status of GSP implementation activities to stakeholders and those subject to 
the long-term fee.

PROJECT TIMELINE

GSP 
implementation 
costs updated 

and fee options 
evaluated

Winter 2022

GSA 
Communication/

Coordination/
Outreach

March-May 2023

Distribute 
Prop. 218 Notice 

to assessable 
parcels 

(if applicable)

May 2023

Final County 
Tax Roll to 
Assessor’s 

Office

July 31, 2023

Wyandotte 
Creek Subbasin 
GSP adopted 
and submitted 

to DWR

January 31, 2022

Fee approach 
authorized by 

WC GSA Board 
of Directors

April 2023

Fee Report 
approved by WC 

GSA Board of 
Directors

May 2023

Fee public 
hearing and 

WC GSA Board 
approval

July 2023

Fees effective 
with Dec. 2023 

Property 
Tax Bill

December 2023


	1. 03-23-23_WDC BOARD AGENDA_Final
	03_02.23.23 Minutes
	04a_Fee Project Agenda Transmittal
	04b_WDC GSA Five Year Revenue Projections JD (2)
	04c_WDC GSA Five Year Revenue Projections JD (2) With DWR Grant Funds
	04d_Wyandotte Creek Funding Fact Sheet_031623

